
 
 
 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC)  
Alternatives Analysis for Transit on Rail Right-of-Way – RFP 

Questions & Responses 
(As of August 15, 2019 including questions from the proposer’s conference.)  

 

Questions from the Proposer’s Conference 
 
1. Q: Do subconsultants have to fill out the California Levine Act Statement form? 

A: Yes, the lead consulting firm and all subconsultants must each fill out a Levine Act form 
(Attachment D of the RFP) and submit it with the proposal to assess any conflict of interest with 
the commissioners at the RTC. The project manager for the firm can sign on behalf of the firm 
and the project team. Having a conflict of interest does not preclude RTC from awarding a 
contract to a firm. It does, however, preclude any identified commissioner(s) from participating 
in the contract award process for this contract. 
 

2. Q: Does the cover letter count toward the page count? 
A: Consultants are encouraged (not required) to limit their proposals to 25 pages of text to 
simplify the review process. Proposal content and completeness are extremely important 
however conciseness is also greatly appreciated. Twenty five pages of text when printed double 
sided would fit on 13 pieces of paper. This targeted page limit is focused on the consultant’s 
proposed work plan for implementing this project, as well as items 3-9 listed under Proposal 
Format of the RFP. References, Letters of Endorsement, Exceptions and Deviations, Required 
Forms, Additional Information, resumes if included, examples of past projects and graphics 
could be included as appendices and not be considered as part of the 25 pages. The Letter of 
Transmittal and front and back covers do not count toward the suggested 25 page limit. 
 

3. Q: Is it okay to bind our proposal with plastic coil binding? 
A: RTC’s resource conservation policy requests proposers to print proposals double-sided, use 
recycled paper and to not use plastic inserts. Covers are not required, however, if provided they 
should be of recyclable material. Plastic coil bindings for the proposals are fine to use although 
ideally, they would be made from recycled material. 
 

4. Q: Do consultants need to include subconsultants 10-H forms in the proposal? 
A: The lead consulting firm and all subconsultants must each fill out a Cost Proposal form and 
submit it with the proposal as specified on pages 6 & 7 of the RFP under Item 4 of Proposal 
Format. Attachment C (LAPM 10-H1) provides a sample cost proposal form that can be used to 
provide this information.   

 
5. Q: Is it correct to assume that the preferred alternative from the Unified Corridor Investment 

Study (UCS) will need to be evaluated as part of this Alternatives Analysis for the rail corridor? 
A: The preferred alternative from the UCS was for high capacity public transit to exist on the rail 
right-of-way alongside a bike and pedestrian trail. The RTC directed staff to work jointly with 
METRO on an Alternatives Analysis to determine what type of transit to develop on the Santa 
Cruz Branch Rail Line. The Highway 1 and Soquel/Freedom projects that are a part of the UCS 
preferred scenario for 2035 will be assumed constructed as part of the Alternatives Analysis.   
 
 



6. Q: Is the rail right of way abandoned? 
A: The Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line (SCBRL) is an active rail line (not abandoned) although 
portions of the facility have storm damage and need repair prior to utilizing again for freight. 
Abandonment of a rail line is a process through which a freight operator obtains approval from 
the Surface Transportation Board to cease freight service on a rail line or segment of rail line. 
Freight service currently occurs on the SCBRL in Watsonville. 

 
7. Q: Does the RTC have a definition for what is considered “High Capacity” Transit? 

A: There is not currently a definition by the RTC for what is considered “high capacity”. This will 
be considered as part of the project. 
 

8. Q: Caltrans has a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal. Although there is not a DBE 
goal for this project, the RFP states that DBE is encouraged. How are the proposals evaluated in 
order to encourage DBEs? 
A: DBE goals only apply to federally-funded projects, but this project does not include federal 
funds. Funds for this consulting contract come from both state and local sources thus the RTC is 
required to comply with state law requirements for procurement of a consultant. California 
state law (Proposition 209) does not allow consideration of DBE participation as part of the 
proposal evaluation criteria. Thus, while the RFP encourages DBE participation, DBE 
participation will not be considered as part of the evaluation criteria.  
 
 

9. Q: When developing performance measures for the Alternatives Analysis in Task 3, can the 
Envision system be used? It has been developed recently and put forward by ASCE, APWA and 
ACEC and has ability to standardize performance measures for infrastructure projects.  
A: The performance measures that will be used for the Alternatives Analysis will be determined 
as part of the project with input from consultant, project team, Ad Hoc Committee, RTC, public 
and stakeholders. The RTC has provided input during the development of the scope of work for 
the RFP that the performance measures should be based on a triple bottom line sustainability 
framework similar to what has been utilized in the Unified Corridor Investment Study and the 
2014 and 2040 Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Plans.  
 

10. Q: Will the information that was developed during the Unified Corridor Investment Study be 
available for the use in the Alternatives Analysis? 
A: The Alternatives Analysis will build on the work of the Unified Corridor Investment Study 
(UCS). Any information developed during the UCS will be available to the consultant team that 
is awarded the contract. 
 

11. Q: Will the projects that are in the UCS preferred scenario for 2035 horizon year be assumed in 
the forecast year for the Alternatives Analysis? 
A: The Highway 1 and Soquel/Freedom projects that are a part of the UCS preferred scenario 
for 2035 will be assumed constructed as part of the Alternatives Analysis.  This includes the 
Hwy 1 auxiliary lanes from Soquel to San Andreas Rd, ramp metering and bus on shoulders. For 
Soquel/Freedom the buffered bicycle lanes and intersection improvements for bicyclists and 
pedestrians and transit where feasible will assume to be implemented. The HOV lanes that were 
in the UCS preferred scenario for “Beyond 2035” will not be considered implemented for this 
study. 
 

12. Q: Does this project just focus on the Rail Right-of-Way as opposed to the UCS that focused on 
the three corridors – Hwy 1, Soquel/Freedom, and the Rail Right-of-Way? 



A: Yes, this project will just evaluate transit options on the rail right-of-way next to a bicycle and 
pedestrian trail.  
 

13. Q: For Task 2.3, “Transit Systems in Similar Communities”, can you explain in more detail what 
you are interested in for this deliverable? Do you have certain transit systems in mind that 
would be good comparisons for Task 2.3? 
A: The transit systems that would be comparable to a transit system in Santa Cruz County will 
be developed as part of the scope of this project. Appendix I of the 2015 Rail Transit Feasibility 
Study provides an example of this deliverable for rail systems. Appendix I is a table of rail 
systems in the U.S. along with various types of information about the system. This deliverable 
will provide information on transit options in similar types of communities that can be used for 
comparison and a check on the feasibility of the transit options being considered in the 
Alternatives Analysis. For example, ridership forecasts will occur as part of the Alternatives 
Analysis. Information on comparison systems may provide a check to see if the ridership 
forecasts are realistic. 
 

14. Q: Can the interview format be provided sooner than when consultants are notified of whether 
they will be interviewed? 
A: Yes, the interview format will be provided to the consultants who submit a proposal by 
September 3, 2019. 
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